



REPUBLIC OF LIBERIA

PUBLIC PROCUREMENT & CONCESSIONS COMMISSION

EXECUTIVE MANSION GROUNDS, CAPITOL HILL, MONROVIA, LIBERIA

WEBSITE: www.ppcc.gov.lr EMAIL: info@ppcc.gov.lr PHONE SHORT CODE: 4357 Executive Mansion Grounds, Capitol Hill, Monrovia, Liberia



Ref. PPCC/RL/ACEO/1158/25

November 13, 2025

Dr. Emmanuel K. Urey
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Environmental Protection Agency
Republic of Liberia

Dear Dr. Urey:

Subject: PPCC RESPONSE: "NO OBJECTION" TO AWARD CONTRACT TO MONROE INTERNATIONAL GROUP OF COMPANIES FOR THE EXTENSION OF NATHANIEL VARNEY MASSAQUOI KINDERGARTEN, ELEMENTARY AND JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL UNDER THE MONROVIA METROPOLITAN CLIMATE RESILIENCE PROJECT - FISCAL YEAR 2025

We present our compliments and wish to acknowledge receipt of your letter which sought the approval of the Commission for the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to award contract to Monroe International Group of Companies for the extension of Nathaniel Varney Massaquoi Kindergarten, Elementary and Junior High School.

The Commission, upon review of your submissions, states the below:

- ❖ That the EPA submitted (Hard copies) including: transmittal letter, bid documents, bidders' submissions, bid evaluation report, procurement committee meeting minutes, bid opening minutes, etc.;
- ❖ That the EPA employed the National Competitive Bidding (NCB) for this procurement;
- ❖ That the EPA has an approved procurement plan for this contract package;
- ❖ That proposals were received from three (3) vendors: (Monroe International Group of Companies, Millennium Construction Inc. and Gully Group of Companies);
- ❖ That for the construction of works, the EPA has an approved amount of US\$200,000.00 on its procurement for the;
- ❖ That Monroe International Group of Companies was deemed responsive to the preliminary, technical and financial evaluations as per the Commission's findings and the EPA BEP's report;
- ❖ That the estimated bid price (US\$405,951.84) of the EPA's proposed winner (Monroe International Group of Companies) exceeds its approved amount of US\$200,000.00;

The Commission, upon review of your request that the EPA provide evidence of the availability of funding to account for the variance of US\$205,951.84 for the Commission's approval.

Regulating Procurement Compliance for National Development

Page 2 of 2

The Public Procurement and Concessions Commission admonishes and deems it a priority that you remain primarily in compliance with the PPCA, 2010, as we jointly aspire to achieve transparency, accountability, fairness, equality and ultimately public confidence in our procurement and concessions processes.

Yours Sincerely,



Bodger Scott Johnson (Hon.)
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER



Office of the Executive Director

REPUBLIC OF LIBERIA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

P.O. Box 4024
Bright Building 302-A, Sekou Toure Avenue, Manba Point
1000 Monrovia, 10 Liberia
Cell #s: +231888608224/ +231777596220
Email: info@epa.gov.lr/ www.epa.gov.lr



ED/EPA-01/2268/25/RL

October 2, 2025

Hon. Bodger Scott Johnson
Executive Director
Public Procurement & Concession Commission
Executive Mansion Ground
Capitol Hill
Monrovia, Liberia

Subject: Request for No Objection to Source Monroe International Group of Companies

Dear Hon. Johnson,

I present my compliments and respectfully write to request a *No Objection* to source **Monroe International Group of Companies**, a national civil/construction engineering firm, for the extension and renovation of the Nathaniel Varney Massaquoi Kindergarten, Elementary, and Junior High School Building in West Point Township. This initiative is intended to establish an Education and Innovation Center under the Monrovia Metropolitan Climate Resilience Project (MMCRP).

The proposed contract, valued at **Four Hundred Thousand United States Dollars (US\$400,000)**, was processed through a National Competitive Bidding method (IFB No: EPA/MMCRP/NCB/001/24). Following an independent evaluation from project partners, Monroe International Group of Companies was determined to be the most responsive bidder for this procurement.

We kindly seek your *No Objection* to proceed with this sourcing in line with PPCC requirements.

Please accept the assurances of my highest esteem and consideration as we continue to advance environmental sustainability.

Kind regards,


Dr. Emmanuel K. Urey Yarkpawolo
Executive Director / Chief Executive Officer

John Sumo
OCT 17/2025
TIME 3:09pm